
 

CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD 

MINUTES OF MEETING 

TOWN HALL 

SEPTEMBER 25, 2017 

 

APPROVED 

 

SELECTBOARD MEMBERS: Matthew Krasnow, Acting Chair; Frank W Tenney, 

Fritz Tegatz, Carrie Spear. ABSENT: Lane Morrison. 

ADMINSTRATION: Dean Bloch, Town Administrator. 

OTHERS: Laurie Thompson, Moe Harvey, Margaret Russell, Mary Mead, Christine 

Booher, Mark Dillenbeck, Ellie Russell, Nicole Conley, Robert Bloch, Scott Hardy, 

Devin St George, Tom Cosinuke, Kevin Romano, Meg Gilbertson, Rich Ahrens, Krista 

Hoffsis, Bill Fraser Harris, Linda Radimer, Chris Davis, Dan Albrecht, and others. 

 

(NOTE:  the agenda was heard out of order, but appears as warned for continuity.) 

 

AGENDA ITEMS: 

 6:40 PM  Tractor Parade  

 6:45 PM  Bench on Town Link Trail  

 7:15 PM  CVFRS Quarterly Report (unaudited FY17 end-of-year) & potential 

implications for FY19 budget  

 7:30 PM Linda Radimer—wildlife crossings  

 7:40 PM Scott Hardy—Open Space Agreement, 5 acres on east side of Mount 

Philo Road  

 —7:45 pm—

—8:00 pm— —8:15 

pm—8:30 pm 

  8:30 PM All-Hazards Mitigation Plan—acceptance of updated plan 

  

terminate lease to Robert W. Bloch and Nancy H. Bloch, approve new 20 year 

lease to Thomas J. Knox, Trustee of the Joan W. Knox Family Trust u/t/a August 

new 20 year lease to David and Catherine Cone  

  

CALL TO ORDER 
Mr. Krasnow, Acting Chair, called the meeting to order at 6:42 p.m.  

 

TRACTOR PARADE  

Ms. Spear reviewed a 17th Annual Tractor Parade proposal, and committee members 

Carrie Spear, Debbie Christie, Cindy Bradley, June Bean, Dave Denton, Margaret Roddy 

and Heather Manning. Northern Traffic Control, LLC will monitor the road closures from 

1:00 p.m.-2:00 p.m., and the Town Constable will assist. She is asking the Town to place 

the parade event as a Town event for insurance purposes, said Ms. Spear. 

 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                 09/25/2017 PAGE 2 

MOTION by Mr. Tegatz, seconded by Mr. Tenney, to approve the 17th Annual 

Tractor Parade, the Board members, Carrie Spear, Debbie Christie, Cindy Bradley, 

June Bean, Dave Denton, Margaret Roddy and Heather Manning, the traffic control 

plan, road closures as presented, and to accept the Tractor Parade as a Town event 

for insurance purposes. 

DISCUSSION: 

Mr. Tegatz thanked Carrie Spear for sponsoring a fun event in the Town. 

 

Ms. Spear said that more volunteers were needed for manning different areas; for 

example, the children’s games. SunCommon has offered the use of a bounce house 

this year in place of children’s game prizes, said Ms. Spear. 

VOTE: 4 ayes, 1 absent (Mr. Morrison); motion carried. 

 

BENCH ON TOWN LINK TRAIL  

Laurie Thompson and Margaret Russell, Charlotte Trails Committee members, explained 

plans to install benches on the Town Link Trail. Two benches have been placed on the 

Co-housing section. A stake has been placed where a third bench could go at the Trevor 

and Melissa Mack Trail section north of State Park Road. The committee has on-going 

discussions with the landowner of the vineyard. A person has donated a bench and will be 

commemorated with a plaque, said Ms. Thompson. 

 

Mr. Tenney asked if a motion should be conditioned upon approval of the bench site by 

the land owner. Ms. Thompson asked if a legal document was needed if the bench was 

placed out of the trail easement. 

 

Mr. Tenney asked the Trails Committee to provide a trails map with the bench locations 

noted. 

 

MOTION by Ms. Spear, seconded by Mr. Tegatz, to approve the installation of a 

bench on the Town Link Trail as presented. 

VOTE: 4 ayes, 1 absent (Mr. Morrison); motion carried. 

 

ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA  

Defer: Thompson’s Point Lease for Lots 115 and 116. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Ms. Mead asked to have a copy of Town department draft budgets at the time they are 

received by the Town for the purpose of review before the department is put on the 

Selectboard agenda. 

 

SELECTBOARD UPDATES - Old Lantern Trial  

Mr. Tegatz reported concerns related to roadway changes at the State Park Road 

intersection. He will draft a letter to VTrans on behalf of the Selectboard, said Mr. 

Tegatz. 

 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                 09/25/2017 PAGE 3 

Mr. Bloch reported that the trial between the Old Lantern and neighbors is scheduled for 

December 11-13. The Town Attorney will represent the Town for a half day on 

December 11th, said Mr. Bloch. 

 

Mr. Krasnow reported that the Soccer Jamboree was a huge success. The fundraising 

went well, and thanked Nicole Conley, Recreation Director for job well done. 

 

Mr. Krasnow asked staff to add a draft of the Municipal Infrastructure Development 

Policy to a future Selectboard agenda. 

  

CVFRS QUARTERLY REPORT (UNAUDITED FY17 END-OF-YEAR) & 

POTENTIAL IMPLICATIONS FOR FY19 BUDGET  

Mr. Tegatz introduced the newly elected CVFRS Corporate Board members: President 

Tom Cosinuke, Vice President Meg Gilbertson, Charlotte Fire Captain Devin St George, 

and Charlotte Rescue Chief Kevin Romano. 

 

Mr. Cosinuke reviewed highlights of a CVFRS year-end unaudited fourth quarter 

financial report, noting that a deficit of $16,841 was the result of increased payroll and 

insurance expenses. 

 

There was discussion regarding increased personnel (4 more per diem EMTs were hired) 

and an increase of volunteers to 20; efforts to work on a Heart Safety Community 

Project; staff shift coverage; a call-back system, standby ambulance and/or mutual aid 

assistance when the main ambulance was called out; projected increases in the BC/BS 

expenses for FY19; and a goal to correlate audits with budgets. 

 

Mr. Krasnow suggested posting the Heart Safety Community Project on Front Porch 

Forum and in the Charlotte News. 

 

Ms. Spear offered to have a CVFRS donation bucket at the Tractor Parade. 

 

Ms. Booher asked why expense line items, such as telephones, subscriptions and 

apparatus were over budget. Mr. Romano explained that subscription expenses are fees 

paid to District 3, scheduling platforms and included upgrades to an emergency reporting 

system. He will research the telephone expense and email a response to the Selectboard, 

said Mr. Romano. 

 

Mr. Cosinuke stated that the MOA between the Town and CVFRS should be reviewed 

every two years. It has not been reviewed since it was adopted in 2014, said Mr. 

Cosinuke. 

 

Mr. Krasnow thanked the CVFRS Board for their report. 

  

LINDA RADIMER—WILDLIFE CROSSINGS  

Linda Radimer, Conservation Commission member, explained a project to post wildlife 

crossings signage. Game cameras will be placed in areas where there are frequent road 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                 09/25/2017 PAGE 4 

crossings to gather data. Ms. Radimer displayed two proposed sign designs for 

Selectboard information.  

 

Mr. Krasnow suggested that the Selectboard conduct site visits for the proposed signage.  

 

SCOTT HARDY—OPEN SPACE AGREEMENT, 5 ACRES ON EAST SIDE OF 

MOUNT PHILO ROAD  

Mr. Bloch reviewed that Scott hardy has an approved 2-lot subdivision on Mt Philo Road. 

A requirement was an Open Space Agreement on the eastern portion of the property. 

There is an unnamed stream on the east and the open space will provide a buffer. There 

are no restrictions regarding agricultural mowing of the property, said Mr. Bloch. 

 

MOTION by Mr. Tegatz, seconded by Mr. Tenney, to approve a proposed Open 

Space Agreement with Scott Hardy, PC-17-49-SD, referenced a Mylar by LaRose 

Surveys, P.C., revised 09/18/2017, and to authorize the Charlotte Acting Chair to 

sign the documents on behalf of the Town of Charlotte. 

VOTE: 4 ayes, 1 absent (Mr. Morrison); motion carried. 

 

Mr. Krasnow signed the Open Space Agreement document, and Ms. Mead notarized the 

signature. 

 

BUDGET PRESENTATIONS  

 

Bill Fraser Harris reviewed a proposed Recreation Capital Reserve fund as a method to 

pay for capital expenses, such as three replacement tennis courts at the Town Beach. 

 

There was lengthy discussion regarding on-going efforts to repair the current asphalt 

tennis courts and a proposal to replace the three courts in the future utilizing a capital 

reserve fund. Mr. Tegatz suggested using the CVFRS capital projects as a budget 

projection model. 

 

Mr. Fraser Harris explained differences in tennis court surfaces and costs. A stressed 

concrete court would cost $190,000 versus asphalt surfaces at $150,000. Currently the 

courts are used as Pickle Ball courts, said Mr. Fraser Harris. 

 

Mr. Fraser Harris suggested that it was time for the Recreation Commission to consider 

charging fees to increase revenue streams, such as a food truck at the Town Beach, or for 

small events. Ms. Mead pointed out that the Town is not in the business of commercial 

operations. 

 

Mr. Krasnow suggested painting murals on the Town Beach building to discourage 

graffiti. 

 

Mr. Fraser Harris said that he would have projections by the November budget review. 

 

 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                 09/25/2017 PAGE 5 

Mr. Dillenbeck, Charlotte Tree Warden, reviewed a proposed level funded budget of 

$1,500. Mileage reimbursement funding will be shifted for paying for workshops and 

training, said Mr. Dillenbeck. 

 

LEWIS CREEK ASSOCIATION   

Krista Hoffsis, Lewis Creek Association representative, reviewed a $600 request to cover 

special projects in Charlotte. 

 

There was discussion regarding invasive species eradication projects and a proposed 

Ahead of the Storm project at the East Thompson’s Point Road hops farm. 

 

ALL-HAZARDS MITIGATION PLAN—ACCEPTANCE OF UPDATED PLAN  

Dan Albrecht, State of Vermont Emergency Management representative, explained a 

2017 process to update the existing All Hazards Mitigation Plan that focuses on 

identifying culverts, roads, ditches, water pollution and erosion. The Selectboard is 

required to sign off on the revised document for submittal to FEMA for review, said Mr. 

Albrecht. 

 

Mr. Krasnow said that rail incidents, page 20, are a high level of concern in Charlotte. 

 

Mr. Tegatz said that regarding strategies, page 44 and 57, the Town has not done a capital 

budget, and are in direct conflict with how the Town voters vote. For example, sidewalk 

projects have been voted down in the past, explained Mr. Tegatz. Mr. Albrecht said that 

the Town Plan includes language for those types of projects now. Mr. Krasnow clarified 

that the reference to capital budgets says “…will review the need for capital budgeting”. 

 

Chris Davis, Charlotte Emergency Manager, noted that in Shelburne, the McCabe’s 

Brook has been identified for improvements to the watershed at a cost of $550 million -

$560 million. Concerns and questions are how to budget for multi-million dollar projects. 

Strategies are being considered, such as in the Shelburne budget, or creation of a 

Stormwater Utility, said Mr. Davis. 

 

Mr. Tenney expressed a concern that the Town might need to hire a part-time employee 

to keep track of the program/projects. Does the Charlotte Road Commissioner need to 

sign off on the plan as well, asked Mr. Tenney. Mr. Albrecht replied that you would have 

done an inventory, and it can be a simple spreadsheet, or check list. It is basic road work, 

like ditch lining, or check dams. Charlotte is fairly flat, pointed out Mr. Albrecht. 

 

Mr. Albrecht said that once the 2017 revised plan is adopted he will check in with the 

Town Manager or Charlotte Road Commissioner in November/December. The next 

update will occur in 2020-2021, said Mr. Albrecht. 

 

MOTION by Mr. Tegatz, seconded by Ms. Spear, to approve the Town of Charlotte 

2017 All Hazards Mitigation Plan as presented at the September 25, 2017 Charlotte 

Selectboard meeting. 

VOTE: 4 ayes, 1 absent (Mr. Morrison); motion carried. 



CHARLOTTE SELECTBOARD                 09/25/2017 PAGE 6 

 

THOMPSON’S POINT LEASES   

Nancy H. Bloch, approve new 20 year lease to Thomas J. Knox, Trustee of the Joan 

W. Knox Family Trust u/t/a August 25, 2000  

MOTON by Mr. Tenney, seconded by Ms. Spear, to terminate the Lease to Robert 

W. Bloch and Nancy H. Bloch, for Lots 115 and 116, located at 796 Flat Rock Road, 

and to approve a new 20-year lease to JWK Thompson’s Point, LLC, and to 

authorize the Charlotte Acting Chair to sign the lease documents on behalf of the 

Town of Charlotte. 

VOTE: 4 ayes, 1 absent (Mr. Morrison); motion carried. 

 

Mr. Krasnow signed the termination lease and new lease documents.  

 

lease to David and Catherine Cone  

MOTION by Mr. Tegatz, seconded by Ms. Spear, to terminate the Thompson’s 

Point lease to JJZ Realty for Lot 134 located at 351 Lane’s Lane, and to approve a 

new 20-year lease to David and Catherine Cone, and to authorize the Charlotte 

Acting Chair to sign the lease documents on behalf of the Town of Charlotte. 

VOTE: 4 ayes, 1 absent (Mr. Morrison); motion carried. 

 

Mr. Krasnow signed the lease termination, consent form, and new lease documents.  

  

MINUTES:  September 11   

MOTION by Mr. Tegatz, seconded by Ms. Spear, to approve the Charlotte 

Selectboard minutes of 09/11/2017, as written. 

VOTE: 4 ayes, 1 absent (Mr. Morrison); motion carried. 

 

APPROVE WARRANTS TO PAY BILLS 
The Selectboard members reviewed and signed warrants to pay bills.  

 

Mr. Krasnow reported that he signed the payroll in the absence of the Charlotte 

Selectboard Chair. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION by Mr. Tegatz, seconded by Ms. Spear, to adjourn the meeting. 

VOTE: 4 ayes 1 absent (Mr. Morrison); motion carried. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:01 p.m. 

 
Minutes respectfully submitted, Kathlyn L. Furr, Recording Secretary. 
 

   


